

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes Indian Trail Meeting Hall January 4, 2023 4:00 P.M.

Members Present: Charles Drew, Bonnie Bray, Bonner Herring, Josh Cline McGee, Jim McKee,

Lewis 'Tal' West, Alexis Gore Graves, and Joanne Wesson

Members Absent: Rick Pukenas

Staff Present: Travis Henley, Director of Development Services

Maureen Meehan, City Planner Tanya Shannon, Deputy Clerk

Board of Aldermen

Liaison:

Robert Carroll

Others Present: Karen Mosteller, Rich Alt, Pat Kirkman, and Travis Gilbert, Executive Director

with the Historic Wilmington Foundation

A. Chair Drew called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m.

B. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Drew.

- **C.** Deputy Clerk Tanya Shannon swore in Commission Members Charles Drew, Bonnie Bray, Josh Cline McGee, Jim McKee, Lewis "Tal" West, Alexis Gore Graves, and Joanne Wesson.
- **D.** A motion was made by Mr. Josh Cline McGee to approve the Agenda and was seconded by Mr. Jim McKee. *Unanimous vote; motion carried*.
- **E.** Mr. Jim McKee motioned to approve the minutes with the amendment that Mr. Jim *McGee* is corrected to Mr. Jim *McKee* on agenda item 4. Mr. Josh Cline McGee seconded the motion. *Unanimous vote; motion carried.*

F. Public Comment:

Mr. Travis Gilbert introduced himself. He is the Executive Director of the Historic Wilmington Foundation. He said that in 1966, a small group of citizens determined to save local built history united to form the Historic Wilmington Foundation (HWF). He said they are a member-supported historic preservation nonprofit with a mission to preserve and protect the irreplaceable in New Hanover,

Pender, and Brunswick counties. Mr. Gilbert offered his assistance to the Commission for support, training, and other services that could help the Historic Preservation of Southport Commission.

G. Old Business: Draft Rules of Procedure

Ms. Bray would like to see clarification on item (G.): Conflicts of Interest. She explained that the language was confusing. She recommended that the term "maker" be removed from the sentence, "Commissioners, including alternates, shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would violate the affected person's constitutional rights to an impartial decision maker."

Mr. McGee asked if a definition of "Parties with Standing" should be included in section III, Consideration of Applications item E. "Parties with standing shall be provided the opportunity to participate in the evidentiary hearing, including presenting evidence, cross-examining witnesses, objecting to evidence, and making legal arguments. "Development Services Director Mr. Henley said that the specifics of "Parties with Standing" would depend on the case matter.

A Motion was made by Mr. McKee to forward the Rules of Procedure to the Board of Aldermen for approval with the amendment to remove the word "maker" from Section 1 (G) and was seconded by Ms. Wesson. *Unanimous vote; motion carried.*

H. New Business

A. Determine the Overarching Goals of the HPC

Mr. Henley provided a handout from an excerpt in the 2014 adopted CAMA Land Use Plan that references the City's Goals and Objectives as a guideline that states:

Section 7. Local areas of concern

1. Management Goals

Goal 7: Southport will integrate local concerns with the overall goals of CAMA in the context of land use planning and in accordance with Southport's Vision and Core Values, Southport will endeavor to preserve the city's historic character, protect the city's shoreline vista, continue to support a vibrant Central Business District, preserve the city's residential areas, and protect the city's Areas of Environmental Concern (AEC's).

2. Planning Objective

Objective 7: Southport will identify and address local concerns and issues, such as cultural and historic areas, scenic areas, economic development, or general health and human service needs.

3. <u>Land Use Plan Requirements</u>

Cultural, Historic, and Scenic Areas

Recommended Action 7.1.A: Consider the creation of a Historic District Commission.

- Policy 7.2: The City shall encourage local, state, and federal efforts to protect historic properties within its borders and to perpetuate its cultural heritage. Recommended Action
- 7.2.A: Coordinate all housing code enforcement/redevelopment projects/public works projects with
 the NC Division of Archives and History to ensure the preservation and identification of significant
 historic structures and archaeological sites.
- Policy 7.3: Southport will guide development so as to encourage the protection of scenic vistas and view corridors.
- Policy 7.4: The City will not allow industrial development within its areas of historical significance.
- Policy 7.5: Southport shall coordinate all housing code enforcement and/or redevelopment projects, utilizing public funding, with the NC Division of Archives and History to ensure that any significant architectural details or buildings are identified and preserved.
- Policy 7.6: Southport will coordinate all city projects with the NC Division of Archives and History to ensure the identification and preservation of significant archaeological sites.

Chair Drew stated that he thinks it is best to keep it simple. His recommendation is to follow the guidelines used by the Wilmington Historic Preservation (the three P's), "Preserve, Promote and Prevent." The Commission discussed their goals, and it was the consensus that it is essential to bring awareness to the Community and provide information that helps the Citizens understand the benefits of Preserving the History of the City and that the intent is not to restrict the property owners.

Chair Drew reviewed the three goals of the Wilmington Historical Commission and attributed that the language could be altered and adopted by the Southport Commission. Mr. Henley said that these goals primarily pertain to Historic Landmarks. Chair Drew asked if the wording could be changed to reflect the goals specific to the Historic District(s) and Landmarks for Southport. Mr. Henley said that Staff would work on drafting the language for obtaining the HPC goals.

A motion was made by Mr. Herring to approve Director Henley and Planner Meehan to draft language for the Historic Preservation Commission Goals and was seconded by Ms. Wesson.

B. Identifying/Discuss Establishing the Historic Preservation District

Unanimous vote; motion carried.

Mr. Henley suggested reviewing the existing designated Historic District presented on the PowerPoint. Mr. McKee suggested an inventory of the Town and expanding the boundaries that meet the standards for Historic designation. Ms. Graves asked if owners should be encouraged to apply for displayed established Historical Plaques for their property. Chief Drew said he is currently working on getting the already-established homes with registered placards. Mr. Henley said that those homes would be considered landmarks. He suggested beginning with establishing and setting the boundaries and districts. He explained that there could be multiple districts, and they could be amended as necessary.

After reviewing the Historic Site map for Southport, Chair Drew recommended that the district boundary line extend up Burrington to include Owens Street and over to Atlantic and Rhett Street down to Kingsley Park. Ms. Meehan reiterated that the 2010 Southport Historic Boundary District Amendment would be included in the draft of the proposed new boundaries once they are established. The current map can be viewed at https://nc.maps.arcgis.com/.

It was the consensus of the Commission to observe various locations in the City that have the credentials for designation as the Historic District or Historic Landmark.

I. Other Business:

The Commission scheduled a Special Meeting on January 23rd at 2 pm for a walking tour of various locations to consider for Historic Preservation.

J. Announcements:

Mr. Gilbert announced that there would be a Historic Preservation Activist Session on zoom or in person on January 10th at noon with the Historic Wilmington Foundation.

Chair Drew reminded everyone that the Regular HPC Meeting would be on Wednesday, February 1^{st,} at 4:00 PM at the Indian Trail Meeting Hall.

Adjourn:

There being no further business or concerns, a Motion to adjourn was made by Mr. West, seconded by Mr. McKee. *Unanimous vote; motion carried.*

Chair, Charles Drew Deputy Clerk, Tanya Shannon

Meeting adjourned at approximately 5:30 p.m.